JOINT REGIONAL PLANNING PANEL (Western Region)

h Shire Council Industry-Gravel
Industry-Gravel
Darling Road Wentworth
760831
h Shire Council/NSW State Government/JB & N N Cullinan
ubject to conditions
L

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION	3
1.1 Executive Summary	3
1.2 Scope of this report	3
1.3 The Development	4
1.4 Site description and surrounding land use and development context	4
2.0 STATUTORY DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT FRAMEWORK	4
2.1 Legislation	4
2.2. Chronology of events and public notification and statutory referrals	5
3.1 SECTION 79C ASSESSMENT	5
3.1 Wentworth Local Environmental Plan 2011	5
3.2 State Environmental Planning Policies	8
3.3. Proposed Instrument	14
3.4 Wentworth Shire Council Development Control Plan 2011	14
3.4.1 1(a(iv) Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000	14
4.0 SECTION 79C 1 (B) AND (C) – LIKLEY IMPACTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT AND SUITABILITY OF THE SITE FO	
THE DEVELOPMENT	
4.1 Flora and Fauna	
	14
4.1 Flora and Fauna	14 16
4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access	14 16 16
4.1 Flora and Fauna4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access4.3 Noise	14 16 16 16
 4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access 4.3 Noise 4.4 Hazards 	14 16 16 16 17
 4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access	14 16 16 16 17 17
 4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access	14 16 16 16 17 17 18
 4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access 4.3 Noise 4.4 Hazards 4.5 Soil, Geological and Erosion 4.6 Air Quality 4.7 Water resources. 	14 16 16 16 17 17 18 18
 4.1 Flora and Fauna	14 16 16 16 17 17 18 18 18
 4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access 4.3 Noise 4.4 Hazards 4.5 Soil, Geological and Erosion 4.6 Air Quality 4.7 Water resources 4.8 Context, Setting and Visual Impact 4.9 Aboriginal Cultural and European Heritage. 	14 16 16 16 17 17 17 18 18 18 19
 4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access 4.3 Noise 4.4 Hazards 4.5 Soil, Geological and Erosion 4.6 Air Quality 4.7 Water resources 4.8 Context, Setting and Visual Impact 4.9 Aboriginal Cultural and European Heritage 4.10 Social and Economic Impact 	14 16 16 16 17 17 17 18 18 18 19 19
 4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access 4.3 Noise 4.4 Hazards 4.4 Hazards 4.5 Soil, Geological and Erosion 4.6 Air Quality 4.7 Water resources 4.8 Context, Setting and Visual Impact 4.9 Aboriginal Cultural and European Heritage 4.10 Social and Economic Impact 4.11 Cumulative impacts 	14 16 16 16 17 17 17 18 18 18 19 19 19
 4.1 Flora and Fauna 4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access 4.3 Noise 4.4 Hazards 4.5 Soil, Geological and Erosion 4.6 Air Quality 4.7 Water resources 4.8 Context, Setting and Visual Impact 4.9 Aboriginal Cultural and European Heritage 4.10 Social and Economic Impact 4.11 Cumulative impacts 4.12 Ecological Sustainable Development 	14 16 16 16 17 17 17 18 18 18 19 19 19 19 19
 4.1 Flora and Fauna	14 16 16 16 17 17 17 18 18 18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19

Appendices: certificate of title and plan of subdivision, site map, zoning map, landscape photographs

Assessment Report and Recommendation

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Executive Summary

The Wentworth Shire Council is the proponent for the Application for Development for a proposal to extract gravel at Hazelldell Station for use on the upgrade and maintenance of local roads. The extraction site is located on Hazelldell Station. Hazelldell Station is approximately 40 km north of the Wentworth township.

The current land use is predominately dry land grazing. The land tenure is Western Lease Land (WLL), the lease is held by Jason and Natarsha Cullinan. The property description is Lot 208 in Deposited Plan No. 760831. Rural address number is 2612 Low Darling Road Wentworth. Western Land Lease No. 9329 for the purpose of grazing and cultivation. Area of Lease is 6812ha. (Certificate of Title Attached-Appendix A).

The development is an extractive industry as defined under the Wentworth Local Environmental Plan 2011 and is designated development pursuant to Schedule 3 (Clause 19b) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. In accordance with Schedule 4A (Clause 8) of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979* the Western Regional Joint Regional Planning Panel (WRJRPP) is the consent authority.

The Application for Development has been assessed in accordance with S79c of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979* (EPAA) and the relevant state and local environmental planning instruments.

The application was notified for a period of thirty (30) days, concluding on the 22 July 2014. No submissions were received as a result of the public notification. Referrals were sent to external agencies and internal departments for comment.

Based on the Section 79c assessment detailed in this report, the development application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions provided in draft format for the consideration of the WRJRPP.

1.2 Scope of this report

This report has been prepared to firstly provide an overview of the proposal and the statutory assessment procedure used during the processing of the development application. An assessment of the key environmental issues of the development is then provided which culminates in the recommendation to the WRJRPP.

1.3 The Development

The proposal is for the operation of gravel extraction. The following summarizes the proposal:

Total extraction – 98000m³ Expected lifespan – 10 years Size – 4.9ha Access to the site is via the High Darling Road Haulage route is via an existing gravel road from High Darling Road. The gravel is to be used for the upgrade and maintenance of local roads including High Darling and Nob Roads. Estimated traffic generation is up to 25 vehicle movements per day (when in operation) Plant to be used in the extraction process is a dozer (to rip the gravel), a front end loader will load onto a tip truck and trailer.

The proposal is otherwise described in written and graphical form in the EIS. A site map is attached to this report (Appendix B).

1.4 Site description and surrounding land use and development context

The proposed quarry site is approximately 40kilometres north of the Wentworth township. The Certificate of Title identifies the subject land as Perpetual Lease to Jason and Natarsha Cullinan. The Western Lands Lease number is 9329. The over-storey vegetation on-site consists of sugarwood, black oak and mallee to a height of 6m. The sub shrub layer and groundcovers are consistent with areas that have a long history of grazing. A full list of the vegetation is in Table 5 in the EIS, listed in Section 4.1 of this report. The nearest residence is located more than 6.5km, the nearest public road is approximately 3.5km away.

2.0 STATUTORY DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT FRAMEWORK

2.1 Legislation

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

Pursuant to section 77A of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act* 1979 (EPAA) the proposal is identified as designated development as defined in Schedule 3 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations (EPAR) being an extractive industry, that:

- Obtain or process for sale, or resuse, more than 30,000 cubic metres of extractive material per year, or
- Disturbance of a total surface area of more than 2 hectares of land.

In accordance with Section 79 and 79A of the EPAA the development application was publicly exhibited for a period of thirty (30) days.

Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000

Clause 19: (b) Extractive industries that disturb or will disturb a total surface area of more than 2 hectares of land by:

(i) clearing or excavating.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Mining, Petroleum Production and Extractive Industries) 2007

Clause 18A identifies development that is designated development, i.e:

Development for the purposes of extractive industries that are located in the Western Division and that obtain or process for sale, or reuse more than 15,000 cubic metres of extractive material per year or more than 40,000 cubic metres in total is declared to be designated development for the purposes of the Act.

2.2. Chronology of events and public notification and statutory referrals

57 51	
DA lodged	22May 2014
DA advertised,	24 June 2014
Newspaper notices	24/6 and 8/7/2014.
Period of public notification	24/06/2014 to 22/07/2014
Referral agency letters	Roads & Maritime Services; Office of Environment &
	Heritage; Office of Water., Environmental Protection
	Authority.
Responses received from agencies	Office of Water – 24/06/2014; Office of Environment and
	Heritage-17/06/2014; Roads and Maritime Services-
	11/06/2014.

Basic chronology of events concerning public notification and statutory referral of the DA

3.1 SECTION 79C ASSESSMENT

Section 79C (a) (i) Environmental Planning Instruments

3.1 Wentworth Local Environmental Plan 2011

The site is located within the RU1 (Primary Production) zone. The development is defined as" 'Extractive Industry' and is development permitted with consent.

Extractive industry means:

The winning or removal of extractive materials (otherwise than from a mine) by methods such as excavating, dredging, tunnelling or quarrying, including the storing, stockpiling or processing of extractive materials by methods such as recycling, washing, crushing, sawing or separating, but does not include turf farming.

Extractive material means:

Sand, soil, gravel, rock or similar substances that are not minerals within the meaning of the Mining Act 1992.

The following provisions apply:

- Clause 1.2: •
- Aims of plan
- Clause 2.3: Zone objectives and land use tables Land use table
- Clause 2.3 subclause 1:
- Clause 5.10:

.

- Clause 7.4:
- Heritage Conservation Terrestrial biodiversity

Clause 1.2 Aims of plan This plan aims to make local environmental planning provisions for land in Wentworth in accordance with the relevant standard environmental planning instrument under section 33A of the Act. The EIS has identified impacts and assessed (a) To encourage and manage ecologically sustainable development within Wentworth for its potential threat to the environment and shown how mitigation measures will

	minimise impacts at the quarry site. Detailed
	assessment in section four of this report.
(b) To encourage the retention and	The gravel is to be used for the maintenance
enhancement of land that supports the primary	and upgrade of local roads, including High
economic activities within Wentworth for	Darling and Nob Roads.
productive agriculture and other primary	
production purposes	
(c) To conserve and protect items of European	There are no European Heritage Items in the
and Aboriginal cultural heritage	immediate vicinity (see clause 5.10 in this table
	for detail). An assessment of the Aboriginal
	Cultural heritage is in section four of this
	report.
(d) To conserve and protect area of	The site and surrounds are not identified as
environmental significance, particularly	areas of environmental significance.
conservation parks, reserves and the Murray	Source: Wentworth Local Environmental Plan
and Darling River systems.	maps, 2011.

Clause 2.3 and 2.3.1 - Zone objectives and land use table. The consent authority must have regard to the objectives for development in a zone when determining a development application in respect of land within the zone.

The development has been assessed in accordance with the relevant RU1 objectives detailed below. The following assessment considers that the development is consistent with the RU1 objectives.

To encourage sustainable primary production	The proposal supports the continued
by maintaining and enhancing the natural	sustainability of the primary production use of
resource base.	the land by ensuring a quality high standard
	road network to enable safe movement for
	residents in the vicinity and to accommodate
	road users.

To encourage diversity in primary industry	The predominant land use in the vicinity is
enterprises and systems appropriate for the	dryland grazing due to the distinctive
area.	topography and climate of the Western Division region.
To minimise the fragmentation and alienation	This proposal will not fragment or alienate the
of resource lands.	resource land.
To minimise conflicts between land uses within	This proposal will not generate conflicts as the
this zone and land uses within adjoining zones.	zoning/land use is consistent, i.e. Primary
	Production zone and primary production use.
To ensure the protection of both mixed dryland	The site and surrounds is predominately
and irrigation agricultural land uses that	dryland grazing.
together form the distinctive rural character of	
Wentworth.	
To ensure land is available for intensive plant	No impact from this proposal on land
agricultural activities.	availability for intensive agricultural pursuits.
To encourage diversity and promote	All work will be undertaken by Wentworth
employment opportunities related to primary	Shire Council staff however this proposal may
industry enterprises, including those that	generate further employment opportunities.
require smaller holdings or are more intensive	
in nature.	
Clause 5.10 Heritage conservation. The objective	
To conserve the environmental heritage of Wentworth.	Proposal consistent with the objectives detailed below.
To conserve the heritage significance of	The closest European heritage items are the
heritage items and heritage conservation areas,	'Hazelldell Homestead (Item 28 of the WLEP),
including associated fabric, settings and views.	approximately 6kms east of the site. Other
	items in the vicinity both at a greater distance
	from site are Sturts Billabong (Item 27) and
	Para Homestead (Item 29).
To conserve archaeological sites.	No impact
To conserve Aboriginal objects and aboriginal	No known Aboriginal objects or places of
places of heritage significance.	significance. See section four of this report.
Clause 7.4 Terrestrial biodiversity. The objective biodiversity by	
Proposal consistent with the objectives detailed b	
Protecting native fauna and flora	The EIS details that clearing is required. Habitat
	trees have been marked and will have
	temporary fencing/bunting in place to ensure
	their survival. There will be no disturbance to
	identified habitat trees.
Protecting the ecological processes necessary	The Environmental Management Rehabilitation
for their continued existence, and	Plan (ERMP) details revegetation processes. See section four.
Encouraging the conservation and recovery of	Fauna and flora assessment detailed in the EIS
native fauna and flora for their habitats	including seven part test of significance.

The consent authority must consider if the	The EIS has addressed any impacts and
development:	mitigations Details are included in this report
(a) is likely to have any adverse impact on the	in section four.
condition, ecological value and significance of	
the fauna and flora on the land, and	
(b) is likely to have any adverse impact on the	The EIS has addressed any impacts and
importance of the vegetation on the land to the	mitigations. Details are included in this report
habitat and survival; of native fauna, and	in section four.
(c) has any potential to fragment, disturb or	The quarry is located in the Murray Darling
diminish the biodiversity structure, function	Geological province. Depressions Bioregion
and composition of the land, and	and Darling Depression sub region of the
	Lower Murray-Darling Catchment. Due to the
	size of this bioregion, being 8,026,156ha in
	NSW, covering 10.3 per cent of the State (EOH
	website, 2013) it is considered the disturbance
	will not impact on the biodiversity structure,
	function and composition.
(d) is likely to have any adverse impact on the	Habitat trees have been identified and will
habitat elements providing connectivity on the	remain. The Environmental Management and
land.	Rehabilitation Plan (EMRP) rehabilitation plan
	details in section 5.2 techniques for
	rehabilitation. A seven part test has also been
	undertaken. No threatened species have been
	recorded at this site.
The consent authority must be satisfied that:	The proposed quarry site and activity was
(a) The development is designed, sited and will	assessed by Green Edge Environmental P/L
be managed to avoid any significant adverse	against alternatives and was chosen as the
environmental impact, or	preferred option. Further details in section
	four of this report.
(b) if that impact cannot be reasonable avoided	Impact to the amenity of the site will be
- the development is designed, sited and will	managed through processes outlined in the
be managed to minimise that impact, or	EMRP.
(c) If that impact cannot be minimized – the	The EMRP details rehabilitation of the site and is
Development will be managed to mitigate that	detailed in s section four of this report.
impact.	

3.2 State Environmental Planning Policies

SEPP (Mining, Petroleum Production and Extractive Industries) 2007

The proposed development is defined as Extractive Industry and therefore this policy applies to the assessment of the development. The clauses of the SEPP relevant to the assessment of the application are outlined below, with comments provided as to how the development satisfies the requirements.

Clause 12: Compatibility of proposed mine, petro	oleum or extractive industry with other land	
USES	t for development for the surpasses of mining	
(1) Before determining an application for consen		
petroleum production or extractive industry, the consent authority must:		
(a) consider	The lead is several DUI1 Driver v. Dreduction	
(ii) whether or not the development is likely to	The land is zoned RU1 Primary Production	
have a significant impact on the uses that, in	under the Wentworth Local Environmental Plan	
the opinion of the consent authority having	2011. (Zoning map attached – Appendix C).	
regard to land use trends, are likely to be	The use is normalitied in the paper, it manufes the	
preferred uses of land in the vicinity of the	The use is permitted in the zone, it meets the	
development, and	objectives.	
(iii) any ways in which the development may be	The area of Hazelldell Station being 6812ha will	
incompatible with any of those existing,	allow for the predominate use of dryland	
approved or likely preferred uses, and	grazing to continue with little impact imposed by the proposed quarrying of gravel.	
(b) evaluate and compare the respective public	The EIS identifies the public benefit in that the	
benefits of the development and the land	resources will be used for the upgrade and	
referred to in paragraph (a) (i) (ii).	maintenance of local roads.	
(c) evaluate any measures proposed by the	The incompatibility is of such a minor nature	
applicant to avoid or minimise any	due to the remoteness and current and	
incompatibility, as referred to in paragraph (a)	proposed land use that the measures identified	
(iii)	in the EMRP are considered appropriate.	
13 Compatibility of proposed development with		
industry		
(1) This clause applies to an application for conse	nt for development on land that is, immediately	
before the application is determined:		
(a) in the vicinity of an existing mine, petroleum	No other quarries operating in the area.	
production facility or extractive industry, or		
(b) identified on a map (being a map that is	At the commencement of this Policy, no land	
approved and signed by the Minister and copies	was identified as referred to in paragraph (b).	
of which are deposited in the head office of the		
Department and publicly available in the		
Departments website) as being the location of		
State or regionally significant resources of		
minerals, petroleum or extractive materials, or		
(c) Identified by an environmental planning	Not identified by an EPI	
instrument as being the location of significant		
resources of minerals, petroleum or extractive		
materials.		
(2) Before determining an application to which th	is clause applies, the consent authority must (a)	
consider:		
(i) The existing uses and approved uses of land	Existing use is predominately dryland grazing	
in the vicinity of the development, and		
(ii) Whether or not the development is likely to	The site and surrounds has an abundant supply	
have a significant impact on current or future	of the resource and has been chosen for this	
extraction or recovery, and	reason.	
(iii) Any ways in which the development may be	The development is not considered to be	
incompatible with any of those existing or	incompatible with previous or existing uses on	
approved uses or that current or future	site and in the vicinity.	
extraction or recovery, and		

The public benefit is considered satisfied as the proposal is permissible with consent within the zone and the recovery material is to be used for maintenance and upgrade of local roads.
Nil measures proposed or considered necessary.
vironmental management
the purposes of mining, petroleum production or onsider whether or not the consent should be at the development is undertaken in an onditions to ensure the following: The EIS has addressed surface and groundwater. There are no creeks, streams or waterways through the site. The closest waterway is the Darling River approximately 6.5km to the south east.
Section four of this report details potential impacts on biodiversity. No threatened species have been found in the vicinity.
The EIS identifies the following mitigation measures for management and operational procedures:
 All machinery and vehicles to be serviced off-site All plant and equipment equipped with fire extinguishers All vehicles to be regularly serviced, be in good working order and emissions to be kept to manufacturers standards
The EIS has not addressed the extent of greenhouse gas emissions but has included mitigation measures for emissions. It states that the alternatives to this proposal would increase the incidence of greenhouse gas emissions because of additional distances to transport gravel.

(3) Without limiting subclause (1), in determining a development application for development for the purposes of mining, the consent authority must consider any certification by the Chief Executive of the Office of Environment and Heritage or the Director- General of the Department of Primary Industries that measures to mitigate or offset the biodiversity impact of the proposed development will be adequate <i>Clause 15: Resource recovery</i>	No certification issued by the CEO of Environmental and Heritage or the DG of DPI. The Office or Environmental and Heritage have requested the inclusion of conditions regarding Aboriginal objects (See condition 6 of draft conditions in section 7 of this report).
(1) Before granting consent for development for the purposes of mining, petroleum production or extractive industry, the consent authority must consider the efficiency or otherwise of the development in terms of resource recovery.	The efficiency of the proposal for resource recovery has been assessed and the extraction and process methodology is considered acceptable.
(2) Before granting consent for the development, the consent authority must consider whether or not the consent should be issued subject to conditions aimed at optimising the efficiency of resource recovery and the reuse or recycling of material.	No additional conditions considered necessary to optimize efficiency, the EIS demonstrates that best practice methods are to be adopted and the extraction and haulage process is considered acceptable.
(3) The consent authority may refuse to grant consent to development if it is not satisfied that the development will be carried out in such a way as to optimise the efficiency of recovery of minerals, petroleum or extractive materials and to minimise the creation of waste in association with the extraction, recovery or processing of minerals, petroleum or extractive materials.	Not applicable - proposal satisfies provisions for optimal efficiency of removal of materials.
Clause 16: Transport	
(1) Before granting consent for development for that involves the transport of materials, the conse consent should be issued subject to conditions th	ent authority must consider whether or not the
(a) require that some or all of the transport of materials in connection with the development is not to be by public road,	The material is to be used on a public road, access to and from the site is only available by public road. There are no alternative transport options available to this site.
(b) limit or preclude truck movements, in connection with the development, that occur on roads in residential areas or on roads near to schools,	Limitations are not considered necessary as the haulage route is not via residential areas or near schools.
(c) require the preparation and implementation, in relation to the development, of a code of conduct relating to the transport of materials on public roads.	The transport of the material will be undertaken by trained Council staff who are familiar with this work and will adhere to Council's Best Management Practices and guidelines.

 (2) If the consent authority considers that the development involves the transport of materials on a public road, the consent authority must, within 7 days after receiving the development application, provide a copy of the application to: (a) each roads authority for the road, and (b) the Roads and Traffic Authority (if it is not a roads authority for the road). 	Roads and Maritime Services were notified of the application for development.
 (3) The consent authority: (a) must not determine the application until it has taken into consideration any submissions that it receives in response from any roads authority or the Roads and Traffic Authority within 21 days after they were provided with a copy of the application, and 	The response from RMS has been considered and conditions applied accordingly.
(b) must provide them with a copy of the determination.	Noted
(4) In circumstances where the consent authority is a roads authority for a public road to which subclause (2) applies, the references in subclauses (2) and (3) to a roads authority for that road do not include the consent authority.	Noted
Clause 17: Rehabilitation	
extractive industry, the consent authority must consent authority must construct to conditions aimed at ensuring the the development.	e rehabilitation of land that will be affected by
(2) In particular, the consent authority must cons	sider whether conditions of the consent should:
(a) require the preparation of a plan that identifies the proposed end use and landform of the land once rehabilitated, or	Conditions relating to rehabilitation are applied and the EMRP will form part of the approved plans. Annual reporting mechanisms will identify any deficiency in rehabilitated land.
(b) require waste generated by the development or the rehabilitation to be dealt with appropriately, or	Conditions of consent deal with this.
(c) require any soil contaminated as a result of the development to be remediated in accordance with relevant guidelines (including guidelines under section 145C of the Act and the <u>Contaminated Land Management Act</u> <u>1997</u>), or	Soil contamination is unlikely as addressed in the EIS and assessed, the EMRP will form part of the approval and deals with this matter.
(d) require steps to be taken to ensure that the state of the land, while being rehabilitated and at the completion of the rehabilitation, does	Public safety will be ensured as the site will be clearly identified, the site is privately leased and remote from the homestead.

SEPP No. 33 (Hazardous and Offensive Development)

Clause 10 states that development identified in clause 3 or 4 which is carried out on land within the Western Division requires the consent of the Council.

State Environmental Planning Policy No. 33 –Hazardous and Offensive development (SEPP33) is an enabling instrument that aims to ensure the merits of a proposal are properly assessed prior to determination (NSW Government Department of Planning 1994).

potentially hazardous industry means a development for the purposes of any industry which, if the development were to operate without employing any measures (including, for example, isolation from existing or likely future development on other land) to reduce or minimise its impact in the locality or on the existing or likely future development on other land, would pose a significant risk in relation to the locality:

(a) to human health, life or property, or

(b) to the biophysical environment,

and includes a hazardous industry and a hazardous storage establishment.

potentially offensive industry means a development for the purposes of an industry which, if the development were to operate without employing any measures (including, for example, isolation from existing or likely future development on other land) to reduce or minimise its impact in the locality or on the existing or likely future development on other land, would emit a polluting discharge (including for example, noise) in a manner which would have a significant adverse impact in the locality or on the existing or likely future development on other land, and includes an offensive industry and an offensive storage establishment.

The EIS does not identify the development as being either potentially hazardous or offensive as there will be no hazardous substances stored on site. Fuels and lubricants will be transported as required on plant. Best management practices will be followed. The development does not require a protection licence from the EPA.

SEPP No. 55- Remediation of land.

This policy applies to the whole of the State. Clause 7 of the policy details when contamination and remediation are to be considered in determining development applications.

The EIS does not assess the likely incidences of contamination over the site. However because of previous uses of the site, being dryland grazing it is not considered the site would be contaminated.

No further assessment required under this policy.

Section 79C (a) (ii) Draft Environmental Planning Instruments

3.3. Proposed Instrument

There are no draft environmental planning instruments to be considered in this assessment.

3.4 Wentworth Shire Council Development Control Plan 2011

The DCP does not have specific clauses regarding extractive industries, the following has been considered:

Clause 5.7.2 Chemical transport	
Everyone transporting chemicals has a duty of ca manner that will not cause harm or injury to ther and the environment.	NAME DEPENDENT OF A CONTRACT OF A DEPENDENT OF A DEPEND
Before moving chemicals, information on the transport requirements of individual chemicals included on containers labels or Material Safety Data Sheer should be consulted and followed	The EIS details that best management practise will be followed when these substances are transferred and in use.

No further assessment required under this plan.

3.4.1 1(a(iv) Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000

The proposal has been assessed and processed in accordance with the relevant sections of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations 2000.

4.0 SECTION 79C 1 (B) AND (C) – LIKLEY IMPACTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT AND SUITABILITY OF THE SITE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT

The EIS addressed the likely impacts of the development on the environment and the measures to mitigate any effects.

The likely impacts and proposed mitigation measures are outlined below.

4.1 Flora and Fauna

Green Edge Environmental P/L prepared the EIS, they have included fauna and flora assessments and identified all impacts.

The EIS has identified the flora species with either state or national conservation significance that have the potential to occur within the study area.

Potential habitat exists for none of these species at this site therefore no assessment has been undertaken.

Scientific name	Common name	Threatened status
Acacia victoriae	Prickly wattle	No
Allocasuarina pauper	Black Oak	No
Astrostipa sp.	Spear grass	No
Atriplex stipitata	Bitter saltbush	No
Brachyscome lineariloba	Hard-head Daisy	No
Calotis hispidula	Bogan Flea	No
Chenopodium desertorum	Desert Goosefoot	No
subsp. Desertorum		
Dissocarpus parodoxa	Cannon Ball	No
Dodonaea sttenuata	Narrow leaf hopbush	No
Enchylaena tomentose	Ruby saltbush	No
Erermpohlia sturti	Turpentine	No
Eucalyptus oleosa	Red Mallee	No
Maireana pentaatropis	Mallee Bluebush	No
Marieana sedifolia	Pearl Bluebush	No
Myoporum platycarpum	Sugarwood	No
subsp. Platycarpum		
Rhagodia spinescens	Thorny saltbush	No
Sclerolaena diacantha	Grey copperburr	No
Introduced Species		
Carrichtera annua	Wards Weed	No
Medicargo minima	Small wooly burr medic	No
Rapistrum rugosum	Turnip weed	No
Salvia verbenaca	Wild sage	No

Flora species recorded on site - no threatened species recorded

The EIS details the threatened fauna species that have the potential to occupy the site. A seven-part test of significance was undertaken for the following species:

- Hooded Robin (Melanodryas cucullata cucullata)
- Corbans Long Eared Bat (Nyctophilus corbeni)

The writer of the EIS concluded that the proposals potential impact on these threatened species are extremely unlikely and any impact would be very minor.

In reaching the conclusion the following matters were considered:

- Implementation of the proposed works
- Activities to be undertaken in the area following the proposed works
- All direct and indirect impacts
- The frequency and duration of each known or likely impact/action
- The total impact which can be attributed to that action over the entire geographic area affected initially and over time
- The sensitively of the receiving environment
- The degree of confidence with which the impacts of the action are known and understood.

Some trees on site contain hollows which will be retained. Habitat vegetation has been clearly identified.

Proposed Mitigation Measures

- Quarrying site to be marked out using permanent markers indicating 'no go zones'
- Species profiles to be kept on site of threatened species that have potential to inhabitat the site
- No quarrying will occur within the drip line of trees and protective fencing will be erected around all mature trees.
- Environmental Management and Rehabilitation Plan (EM & RP) will be followed at all times.

4.2 Traffic, Roads and Access

Traffic generation is anticipated to be a maximum of 25 vehicle movements per day. Whilst there will be some disruption to road users during maintenance of the road, there will be no disruption during quarrying due to the quarry site being on private land and the haul roads are internal roads within Hazelldell Station to the High Darling Road then to destination local roads.

The impact this will have on existing road users will be minimal due to the time frame (over a ten year period) and the gravel extraction operation on an 'as needs' basis. Best practice methods will be adopted.

Plant and equipment working on the quarry will not be permitted outside the designated quarry area. Bunting will be used to identify the area. Light vehicle parking will be within the footprint of the quarry.

The Roads and Maritime Services have reviewed the application and EIS. RMS have advised that they raise no objection and have submitted a number of conditions for the consideration of Council.

4.3 Noise

The source of noise will be from the use of heavy machinery to extract and load gravel and trucks to cart the material to the site. Due to the remoteness of the operation to nearest residence (Hazelldells Homestead is 6.5 kilometres from the quarry site) there will not be any impact on surrounding land users.

No further assessment required regarding noise.

4.4 Hazards

Bushfire

The EIS states that due to the nature of the proposal and the composition of vegetation species at the site, it is highly unlikely that the vegetation would carry a fire. The wide spacing of individual shrubs and the limited amount of dry matter of grass species present (due to the arid climate) would not be conducive to the spread of fire.

Flooding

The site is not identified as being floodprone in the EIS and is not located in Councils mapped area for flood prone land.

Stormwater will be retained on site, due to the porous nature of gravel, stormwater infiltrates quickly through the soil profile.

Table drains will be cut into the roads on the downside slope sited as dictated by catchment size and slope. This will direct the run off stormwater to small containment areas ensuring water is directed away from road formation.

Waste management

Any waste generated from the site will be contained and removed from the site for safe disposal.

4.5 Soil, Geological and Erosion

Soil assessment has been undertaken by Green Edge Environmental P/L and forms part of the EIS.

The soil is not known to be contaminated and no new contamination is expected as a result of the quarrying activity due to the best practice methods adopted.

The presence of acid sulphate soils has not been found. The process for the production of acid sulphate soils is for sustained inundation followed by drying. The Wentworth Shire is sited in a predominately semi-arid rangeland zone. Annual rainfall is less than 300mm and evaporation rates are six times higher than rainfall rates. (Wentworth Shire Fact File, French & Maynard, 2004).

Proposed Mitigation Measures

- Staff are trained in best management practices in all areas of quarrying
- A spill lit is attached to the portable fuel cart and is brought to the site each day
- All machinery is serviced off site
- Supervision of works is by a suitably qualified mines manager
- Quarrying and transporting will only occur when climatic conditions are conducive to the operation.

4.6 Air Quality

The EIS has identified that practices associated with quarrying of gravel that could impact on air quality include exhaust emissions from plant and vehicles and windblown dust from the site.

The nearest dwelling is 6.5 kms away and the nearest public road approximately 3.5kms therefore impacts will be minimal.

Proposed Mitigation Measures

- No burning on site
- All plant and equipment will be equipped with fire extinguishers
- All plant and vehicles serviced and be in good working order to ensure emissions within manufacturers standards
- Tarpaulins will be used to cover loads on trucks
- Quarrying and carting will cease if severe wind conditions are present.

4.7 Water resources

No creeks, streams or waterways run through the proposed sites. The nearest permanent natural water supply is the Darling River, approximately 6.5km to the south east of the site.

The EIS has identified that groundwater resources within the area are generally of varying quality. 52 well are identified within a 10km radius. The nearest well is approximately 4.5 km from the quarry site. The nearest well is approximately 3.5km from the site. These wells have been drilled to 13.5m and 32m with the standing level or depth below being available for one well, at 9.06m. Based on this it is expected that groundwater is at least 9m below surface level.

There will be no impact on groundwater as the depth of quarrying will be to a maximum of 1.2m.

The landholder does not use groundwater for any purpose.

The New South Wales Office of Water have reviewed the EIS and have applied conditions in relation to the monitoring of groundwater (See conditions 4 and 5 of draft conditions in section 7 of this report).

4.8 Context, Setting and Visual Impact

The setting is rural and the land is predominately used for dryland grazing. The vegetation is described as a Black Oak woodland.

The soil in the proposed quarrying area consists of thin sandy loam topsoil, underlain by a gravely material.

The visual impact of the quarry site on the surrounding land is minimal, it will not be visible from the nearest public road.

Pictures attached in Appendix D show the landscape overview, the dominant flora species typical to the area and gravel and soil layers.

4.9 Aboriginal Cultural and European Heritage.

A local Elder and member of the Dareton Aboriginal Lands Council attended the site and in his correspondence of the 15 November 2013 he states:

- No known Aboriginal artefacts at the site
- The position of the site in relation to the surrounding landscape is unlikely to have provided for intense Aboriginal occupation
- The proposed location would have potentially been used by Aboriginal people as hunting grounds.

An Aboriginal Heritage Information System (AHIMS) database search was undertaken, no Aboriginal objects and Aboriginal places were recorded near the proposed area.

The Due Diligence Code of Practice for the Protection of Aboriginal Objects in NSW was reviewed and detailed in the EIS.

There are no European Heritage items in the vicinity, the closest being the Hazelldell Homestead approximately 6.5 kms from the site. (Source: WLEP 2011. Schedule 5)

4.10 Social and Economic Impact

An assessment to justify and consider alternatives to the project was undertaken. This site was chosen for the extent of resource available, ownership and location to the end use. The EIS identified that existing council staff will operate the quarrying extraction. The gravel is to be used for road maintenance of local roads. It is considered that the proposal would provide a very minor social and economic impact when considering employment generation. The land is not prime crop or pasture land and the site will be rehabilitated in accordance with the rehabilitation plan and the local government requirements.

4.11 Cumulative impacts

The EIS stated cumulative environmental impacts from the proposal will be minimal, each identified impact has been assessed and any potential threats are shown to be mitigated.

The assessment of the development did not identify any cumulative impacts associated with the operation relating to traffic, loss of vegetation, amenity and noise. All have been addressed and will be managed effectively.

4.12 Ecological Sustainable Development

The EIS has not specifically addressed ESD, however it is considered that the siting of this proposal and the haulage to end use maximizes best ESD ideology. The mitigation measures in the EIS and the assessment has shown that ESD is being implemented and is considered satisfactory for this proposal.

5.0 PUBLIC SUBMISSIONS

Section 1 (d) any submissions made in accordance with this Act or the regulations A chronology of the public notification and referral process is provided in section 2.2. of this report.

No submissions have been received.

Section 1 (e) the public interest

The development was advertised and publically exhibited in accordance with Section 79 and 79A of the EP & A Act. No submissions were received as a result of the public notification.

The proposal is permissible within the zone and satisfies the objectives as outlined in section 3.1 of this report.

6.0 CONCLUSION

This proposal is for the operation of a gravel quarry at Hazelldell Station. The proposed quarry will extract a total of $98,000m^3$ over a total life expectancy of ten (10) years. The operation will take place on an 'as needs' basis for the maintenance of local roads. It will operate from 7am - 6pm Monday to Friday and 8am - 12 noon Saturday. Haulage is via internal tracks and the High Darling Road. Traffic generation will be up to 25 peak daily vehicle movements per day.

The development/proposal is designated development and an EIS was submitted to identify all potential impacts. It is considered that the EIS has been prepared in accordance with the Director Generals requirements issued by the Department of Planning and Infrastructure and all relevant legislation for the assessment of the development and the identified impacts are assessed within Sections 3 and 4 of this report.

The development application was processed and advertised in accordance with the provisions of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979* and the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulations 2000 and Environmental Planning Instruments thereunder.

Based on the above Section 79C assessment, it is recommended to the Western Region JRPP that the development application for an Extractive Industry on Lot 208 in Deposited Plan 760831 (2612) Low Darling Road Wentworth be approved subject to the conditions below:

7.0 DRAFT CONDITIONS

DA14/048 EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY - GRAVEL QUARRY - LOT 208 DP 760831 LOW DARLING ROAD. PARISH OF BINGOO. **SCHEDULE 1**

1.	The development hereby authorised shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the	
	 conditions of this approval and stamped approved documents listed below Environmental Impact Statement prepared by Green Edge Environmental P/L dated 18/03/2014 	
	 Environment Management and Rehabilitation Plan prepared by Green Edge Environmental P/L dated 18/03/2014 	
	NOTE: Where there is inconsistency between the Environmental Impact Statement and these conditions, the conditions of this approval shall apply.	
2.	Approval is for an Extractive Industry being for the quarrying and extraction of gravel.	
3.	Without the further consent of the Wentworth Shire Council, in writing, this permit shall lapse and have no force or effect unless the use or development hereby permitted is substantially commenced within 5 years of the date of this permit.	
4.	Prior to the commencement of work Wentworth Shire must apply for a monitoring bore to b constructed in a suitable and safe location on the site, intersecting the regional groundwater table. (Application forms are available from our web site or through the Buronga Office. Tel: 03 5051 6200).	
5.	Quarterly monitoring is to be undertaken and all the water level data and construction detail on the monitoring bore are to be sent to the Hydrogeologist, NSW Office of Water at PO Box 829, Albury NSW 2464.	
6.	If any Aboriginal object is discovered and/or harmed in, on or under the land, the proponent must: a) not further harm the Aboriginal object	
	 b) immediately cease all work at the particular location c) secure the area so as to avoid further harm to the Aboriginal object 	
	d) notify the Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH) as soon as practicable on 131 555, providing any details of the Aboriginal object and its location, and e) not recommence any work at the particular location unless authorised in writing by OEH.	
7.	No removal of gravel and fill or disturbance of vegetation outside of the designated work area will be permitted without the written approval of the Wentworth Shire Council.	
8.	A chemical closet or similar self contained toilet facility shall be provided on or in the vicinity of the gravel site for use by workers engaged on activities associated with the quarry.	
9.	Operations within the worksite shall be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the NSW Workcover Code of Practice for excavation work.	

10.	The proponent is required to rehabilitate the area in line with the rehabilitation plan, to a standard that returns the land back to its use prior to the use of the land as a gravel quarry.	
11.	Monitoring of site rehabilitation activities is to be undertaken by a qualified ecologist to determine the success of the rehabilitation works, and identify any areas where follow up plantings or other work is required. This monitoring is to be undertaken on an annual basis and reported to Council.	
12.	Quarrying and ancillary activities must be carried out in a manner that will minimise emissior of dust from the site.	
13.	Any driveway to the public road network (High Darling Road) is to be located and maintained so as to comply with the required Safe Intersection Sight Distance (SISD) in either direction in accordance with the Austroads Publications for the prevailing speed limit. Compliance with this requirement is to be certified by an appropriately qualified person prior to construction of the vehicular access.	
14.	The driveway intersection is to be constructed as a "Rural Property Access" type treatment in accordance with the Austroads Guide to Road Design and is to be constructed perpendicular (or at an angle of not less than 70 degrees) to the carriageway. The driveway is to be constructed with a minimum width to accommodate the largest size of vehicle likely to access the subject site.	
15.	Any damage or disturbance to the road reserve (other than the driveway) is to be restored to match surrounding landform in accordance with Council requirements.	
16.	The access driveway is to be designed and constructed to prevent water from proceeding onto the carriageway. If a culvert is to be located within the clear zone of the carriageway for the prevailing speed zone it is to be constructed with a traversable type headwall.	
17.	Trucks entering and leaving the site that are carrying loads must be covered at all times, except during loading and unloading.	
18.	When the quarry is in operation the proponent is to install "Truck Entering" (W5-22C) signs on both the approached to warn motorists of the possible truck movements.	
19.	Any entry gate to the site shall be located at least 40m from the edge of the carriageway or at a property boundary whichever is the greater. This is to allow for the standing of large vehicles when gates are to be opened.	

REASONS FOR CONDITIONS

a) To ensure compliance with the terms of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act.

b) To ensure work is sustainable, and that an appropriate level of provision of amenities and services occurs within the Shire and to occupants of lots.

c) To minimise environmental impact and impact on public assets, degradation of natural resources, and to enhance amenity.

d) To provide for a quality environment, safe and efficient movement of people and to ensure public safety and interest.